MARSHALL FAIRCLOTH
Chairman

JIMMY KEEFE

Vice Chairman

JEANNETTE M. COUNCIL
KENNETH S. EDGE
CHARLES E. EVANS

BILLY R. KING
EDWARD G. MELVIN

TO:
FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

CANDICE WHITE
Clerk to the Board

KELLIE BEAM
Deputy Clerk

UMBERLAN
C* COUNTY*D

NORTH CAROLINA

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

MEMORANDUM

Finance Committee Members (Commissioners Edge, Council and Melvin)
Candice H. White, Clerk to the Boar((ca
April 30, 2012

Finance Committee Meeting — Thursday, May 3, 2012

There will be a regular meeting of the Finance Committee on Thursday, May 3, 2012
at 9:30 AM in Room 564 of the Cumberland County Courthouse.

AGENDA

1. Approval of Minutes — April 5, 2012 Meeting

2. Update on Parks and Recreation Bond Issue

3. Update on the Day Reporting Center FY2013 Funding

4. Update on the Classification and Pay Study

5. Discussion of the County’s Other Post-Employment (OPEB) Obligations as
Disclosed in the June 30, 2011, Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

6. Review of Monthly Financial Report
7. Other Matters of Business
CC: Board of Commissioners

Administration
Howard Abner, Assistant Finance Director
Tammy Gillis, Senior Internal Auditor

Legal

County Department Head(s)
Sunshine List

5th Floor, New Courthouse ¢ P.O. Box 1829 ¢ Fayetteville, Notth Carolina 28302-1829

(910) 678-7771 = Fax: (910) 678-7770




ITEM NO. /.

DRAFT

CUMBERLAND COUNTY FINANCE COMMITTEE
NEW COURTHOUSE, 117 DICK STREET, 5STH FLOOR, ROOM 564
APRIL 5, 2012 - 9:30AM
MINUTES

MEMBERS PRESENT: Commissioner Kenneth Edge, Chairman
Commissioner Jeannette Council
Commissioner Ed Melvin

OTHER COMMISSIONERS
PRESENT: Commissioner Jimmy Keefe
Commissioner Charles Evans
Commissioner Marshall Faircloth (arrived 9:45 a.m.)

OTHERS: James Martin, County Manager
Amy Cannon, Deputy County Manager
James Lawson, Assistant County Manager
Rick Moorefield, County Attorney
Phyllis Jones, Assistant County Attorney
Howard Abner, Assistant Finance Director
Sally Shutt, Communication and Strategic Initiatives Manager
Karen Long, Crown Coliseum General Manager
Chris Ragland, Crown Coliseum AGM/Director of Operations
Lisa Foster, Crown Coliseum Director of Finance
Ryan C. Aul and Wayne Beard, Sr., Civic Center Commissioner
Members
Rita Perry, Crown Coliseum Administrative Support
Candice H. White, Clerk to the Board
Press

Commissioner Edge called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m.

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - MARCH 1, 2012 REGULAR MEETING

MOTION:  Commissioner Melvin moved to approve the minutes.
SECOND:  Commissioner Council
VOTE: UNANIMOUS (3-0)

2. PRESENTATION OF CROWN CENTER BUSINESS PLAN AND BI-ANNUAL
REPORT

James Martin, County Manager, called on Karen Long, Crown Coliseum General Manager, who
introduced members of her staff and the Civic Center Commission. Ms. Long provided the
following overview of the Crown Coliseum’s Business Plan Bi-Annual Report. The full report is
included herein as Attachment A.




DRAFT

Chronological Summary
November 2010: The County Finance Committee requested that the Crown Center develop
a business plan.

April 6, 2011: The Business Plan was presented to and approved by the Civic Center
Commission. The Commission instructed the General Manager to develop
a strategic plan.

June 28, 2011: The Crown Strategic Plan was presented to and approved by the Civic
Center Commission.

September 1, 2011:  Crown Business and Strategic Plans were presented to the County Finance
Committee. The Finance Committee requested bi-annual reports outlining
marketing and promotion strategies and financial goals.

February 9 and Executive Committee meetings were held to discuss the Business Plan.
March 9, 2012:

March 27, 2012: Presentation made to Civic Center Commission.

April 2, 2012: Executive Committee approved the business plan and bi-annual report.

April 5, 2012: The first bi-annual presentation was made to the County Finance
Committee.

Business Plan Updates and Additions
Ms. Long briefly reviewed updates and additions to the business plan and referenced page
numbers of the report on which the information could be found.

Administrative:

Pages 2 & 7: Change of the indoor football information to Cape Fear Heroes (Arena Indoor
Football).

Page 4: Update of Civic Center Commission board members

Page 5: Update of Crown Center organizational chart

Financial Graphs:
Pages 24- 33 and Page 35 — 37 (Fiscal year data updates)

Addition:
Pages 28: Debt Services Requirement FY2012-2025 Graph

Finance Objectives




DRAFT

= Manage the resources of the Crown Center in a fiscally responsible manner

= Ensure efficient and effective staffing for events

= Increase the number of visitors/patrons to the Crown Center

= Ensure equitable contracts with promoters

= Ensure risk assessment is measureable for programming in relation to sponsored events

Ms. Long reported the Executive Committee at their February and March 9, 2012 meetings
directed her to use drop counts or attendance numbers and event contributions and budget
contributions as a means to most accurately represent performance indicators for the business
plan report.

Ms. Long stated in accordance with the direction of the Executive Committee, the Crown
Coliseum will use a 1.5% increase or drop count or attendance numbers as a performance
measurement tool. Ms. Long explained if the performance management tool was based on
the FY2010-2011 drop count, the goal would be an increase of just over 8,500 attendees.

Performance Indicators

Drop Count (Attendance)

FISCAL YEAR DROP COUNT
2010-2011 567,937
2009-2010 533,092
2008-2009 577,733

Goal: 1.5% increase for FY2011-2012

Ms. Long stated in also accordance with the direction of the Executive Committee, the
Crown Coliseum will use a 1% increase for event contributions as a performance
measurement tool. Ms. Long further explained if the performance measurement tool was
based on the FY2010-2011 event contributions, the goal would be an increase of just over
$14,000.

Event Contributions

FISCAL YEAR EVENT CONTRIBUTIONS
2010-2011 $1,406,851
2009-2010 $1,436,393
2008-2009 $1,129,775




DRAFT

Goal: 1% increase for FY2011-2012

Ms. Long stated that third performance measurement or indicator will be to strive for a year-
end net contribution of 8% to the budget; this will include both combined event and non-
event revenue. Ms. Long explained net contributions to budget consist of revenues less
expenses of the general operations of the Crown Coliseum; this excludes capital, major
maintenance and repairs greater than $30,000, encumbered items and associated revenue
assigned for those expenses. Mr. Long also explained major maintenance and repairs and
encumbered items were not itemized on previous financial reports so there is a lack of
historical data for net contributions to the budget.

Year-End Net Contributions to Budget

Contribution

Fixed Costs

Units

Goal: 8%

Ms. Long explained ways in which the goals as designated by the performance indicators will be
achieved and also provided cost savings estimates.

- 1.5% Drop Countlincrease
- 1% Event Contribution Increase
- Year end net budget contribution

. Cold calls

. Fiscally Responsible
p— "W 2 Management
Distribution N
of

promotional
materials




DRAFT

Fiscally Responsible Management

= Monitor overtime and adjust schedules when necessary to reduce overtime, contracted
services, and on-call employees

= Regularly scheduled equipment evaluation performed by staff and outside contractors

= Yearly software updates to ensure proper control of equipment and increase energy
efficiency

= Equipment upgrades to ensure complex is working as efficiently and effectively as
possible

= Coliseum and Expo florescent lighting retrofitting

= Arena lighting updating

= In-house maintenance and repairs (i.e., carpentry, painting, electrical lighting
upgrades and repairs, welding and landscaping)

= Event and Operating policy and procedure updates

(Internal Controls)
®  Purchasing Policy
= Cash Receipts Policy
= Petty Cash Policy
= Sponsored Events
= Comply with All Cumberland County Policies

Marketing and Sales

Cold Calls:
= Website inquiries
= Promoters
e Suite Lease

= Signage

Distribution of Promotional Materials:
s Cumberland County municipalities
= Various county departments
= Surrounding counties
s Colleges

Networking/Industry Related:
= JAVM — International Association of Venue Managers, Inc.
= RCMA — Religious Conference Management Association
= Venue Coalition
= TEAMS — Travel, Events, and Management in Sports
= ]EBA — International Entertainment Buyers Association

Networking/Local and Regional:
= FACVB — Fayetteville Area Convention and Visitors Bureau
= NC Sports Association
s AENC - Association Executives of North Carolina




DRAFT

= MWR — Morale, Welfare and Recreation
= NCDBA — North Carolina Defense Business Association
s FAHA - Fayetteville Area Hospitality Association

Group Sales:
Present
= Cape Fear Valley Hospital

Potential

= Cumberland County employees

s City of Fayetteville employees

= PWC

s Goodyear

8 Local and area colleges

= Current suite holders and businesses that have signage

& Crown Center website
s Facebook

e Twitter

= E-mail blasts

e Ticketmaster

= Digital marquees
®  Digital billboards
e Radio
e Network and cable television
MOTION: Commissioner Council moved to reduce the Crown Coliseum’s number of annual

reports to one report.
SECOND:  Commissioner Melvin
VOTE: UNANIMOUS (3-0)

Questions followed. Lisa Foster, Crown Coliseum Director of Finance, explained food and
beverage tax projections and transfers, fund balance expensed for operating expenses, and capital
projects under the plan. Consensus of the Finance Committee was for the Crown Coliseum to
provide its annual report in October.

3. DISCUSSION OF FINANCIAL IMPACT OF MENTAL HEALTH DIVESTITURE

Mr. Martin called on Amy Cannon, Deputy County Manager, who referenced Mental Health
Director Hank Debnam’s presentation at the Board’s February 17, 2012 planning retreat
regarding changes for the Mental Health Authority related to continued mental health reform and
divestiture of services. Ms. Cannon stated the Mental Health Authority will no longer provide
direct services to clients but will move to a capitated funding model which will establish a
Managed Care Organization (MCO). Ms. Cannon stated Wake and Durham counties merged
into one unit and Cumberland County is combining with Durham and Johnson counties with




DRAFT

Durham being the new MCO for the four-county region. Ms. Cannon stated each county will
have designated MCO funded staff and there will be forty-six and one-half positions at the local
level paid for by the MCO.

Ms. Cannon stated during discussion at the February 17, 2012 planning retreat, Mr. Debnam
mentioned the movement of some clinical services to other county departments in an effort to
preserve employee positions within the county infrastructure. Ms. Cannon stated one of the
concerns is that Mr. Debnam is proposing to retain about twenty-two of the former Local
Management Entity (LME) positions that would be county-funded. Ms. Cannon stated there will
be no LME funding to offset the salary costs of the positions and these positions will not be
revenue generating. Ms Cannon stated these positions will cost the county $1 million annually.

Ms. Cannon stated additionally, the guardianship function for Mental Health clients can no
longer be serviced by the Mental Health Authority and this function and three Mental Health
employees will be transferred to the Department of Social Services to maintain this service. Ms.
Cannon stated this appears to be a good fit although there may be some financial impact to
Social Services revenues for a certain time period since the positions will not be allowed to draw
down Block Grant monies.

Ms. Cannon stated also of significance is the transfer of the psychiatric clinical services from the
Mental Health Authority to the Public Health Department. Ms. Cannon stated there are about
twenty-six positions that are proposed to be transferred to and managed by the Public Health
Department and located in the Bradford Avenue facility. Ms. Cannon stated the makeup of the
unit will be one medical director, six psychiatrists and support positions for the unit. Ms.
Cannon stated a considerable amount of supplemental money will be needed to support the unit’s
$3 million budget and the unit’s revenue potential is less than one-third the budget. Ms. Cannon
stated this unit has not been self sustaining in Mental Health and when this unit is moved to the
Public Health, it will be a standalone unit and if the unit does not bring in revenues to fully cover
its expenditures, the unit will require county funding.

Ms. Cannon stated as budgets are being submitted, there are probably more questions than
answers and staff are evaluating these issues. Ms. Cannon stated a meeting with staff from the
Mental Health Authority has been scheduled to work through some of the issues. Ms. Cannon
stated the conclusion is there will be new fiscal challenges to the general fund, especially in
combination with funding for the Detention Center and its staffing. Ms. Cannon stated she felt it
would be appropriate to bring this matter to the attention of the Board since the budget process
will begin next month. Ms. Cannon concluded her discussion by stating at some point, staff may
request a special meeting with the Board to discuss service levels, productivity and the financial
implications.

Commissioner Council stated the Cumberland County community has needs for mental health
services but is underserved by psychiatrists and she did not understand why the unit could not be
revenue producing. Commissioner Council stated she felt psychiatric services should have
extended hours and weekend hours and should be provided in collaboration with the Public
Health Department, the school system and the Cape Fear Valley Hospital System.
Commissioner Council stated there are also problems at the Detention Center that require
extensive mental health services. Commissioner Council stated it is incumbent on the County




DRAFT

Commissioners to see that the taxpayers’ dollars are being used in a more fruitful manner and it
did not make sense to her that the county should carry the psychiatric clinical services unit at an
annual cost of $4 million.

Mr. Martin stated he recently met with Mr. Debnam and they discussed the transfer of the unit
and the need for the unit to be sustainable in terms of generating revenue to cover its expenses.
Mr. Martin stated during their discussion, Mr. Debnam indicated he has had ongoing concerns
about the productivity level of this unit. Mr. Martin stated this unit must make major gains in
productivity to generate the revenue necessary for it to be sustainable. Discussion followed.

Commissioner Faircloth asked what the county was required to do by the state. Commissioner
Edge asked what would be accomplished by combining the four counties into an MCO. Ms.
Cannon stated the MCO will perform the billing and draw down of state funding and will
theoretically reduce administrative staff outside of those functions. Rick Moorefield, County
Attorney, stated the state has forced all counties to go to the Piedmont Behavioral Health model
that was created to administer managed care operations with funds provided only through
Medicaid.

Commissioner Edge requested clarification regarding eliminated positions. Ms. Cannon stated at
this point there are forty-three positions in the requested budget that will be eliminated December
31, 2012. Ms. Cannon stated at present there are eighty-seven positions and the Mental Health
Authority’s goal is to retain about twenty-two of those positions which would be county-funded
plus forty-six new positions created and funded by the MCO. Ms. Cannon stated theoretically
some of the individuals in the eliminated positions may be able to move to MCO positions.

Additional questions and discussion followed. Commissioner Council asked about Mental
Health’s fund balance. Ms. Cannon advised several years ago the Local Government
Commission (LGC) told the county’s finance office that the Mental Health fund does not meet
the definition to be a special revenue fund and moving the Mental Health fund into the general
fund makes it just like any other county department whose fund balance is combined with the
county’s fund balance.

Commissioner Edge asked if the county could legally say it would not fund psychiatric clinical
services. Mr. Moorefield responded in the affirmative. Mr. Martin stated he is not sure whether
Mental Health staff has looked at the possibility of privatizing these services but he had
mentioned this option to Mr. Debnam. Commissioner Faircloth suggested that Mr. Martin
suggest to Mr. Debnam that the board is not receptive to taking on psychiatric clinical services
and that he may need another plan. Commissioner Faircloth stated he did not see the county
taking on psychiatric clinical services unless it halts the jail expansion.

Mr. Moorefield advised Mental Health is requesting that the county work out the transfer of
these programs through a Memorandum of Understanding between Mental Health and the Health
Department. Mr. Moorefield stated if this is accomplished, then it will be a commitment from
the county to provide the additional funding indefinitely and it will also be an acknowledgement
that there is not a private market to provide the services.

4. REVIEW OF MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT




DRAFT

For expenditures and obligations Howard Abner, Assistant Finance Director, reported for eight
months the county’s year-to-date obligations were 64.90% of budget which is 1.25% greater than
this time last year. Mr. Abner further reported the total spending rate is 64.47% and is in line
with last year’s 64.31%. Mr. Abner advised one of the two biggest areas for expenditures is for
personnel and typically the under spending for personnel can approach $4 million; some of that
under spending is offset by the hiring of temporary personnel which brings the figure closer to $3
million. Mr. Abner advised the other big spending area is basic operating for departments that
house people which approaches 99% to 99.5%. Mr. Abner stated the trend for departments to
spend a higher and higher percentage of their budget continues.

For revenue, Mr. Abner reported ad valorem taxes were on track to collect about 101.2% of
budget which equates to $1.6 million, and motor vehicle tax collections were doing well. Mr.
Abner reported monthly collections of $1 million were a good sign and the county now has four
consecutive $1 million months. Mr. Abner also reported February’s sales tax distributions of $3
million were for sales in Novembers and collections for these November sales were up .8% from
November 2010. Mr. Abner stated overall year-end estimates were projected at just .98%
increase over the budget. Mr. Abner reported Register of Deeds fees were showing a slight
overall increase over last year and the hope was this is part of a positive trend. Mr. Abner further
reported sales and services were doing quite well with both the total collection and percent of
budget collected being well above last year. Mr. Abner concluded his report by stating that these
categories were at 77.66% of budget which was 1.4% above last year.

5. OTHER MATTERS OF BUSINESS
There were no other matters of business.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 10:43 a.m.




ITEMNO..=f. .

JAMES E. LAWSON

JAMES E. MARTIN
Assistant County Manager

County Manager

AMY H. CANNON
Deputy County Manager

OFFICE OF THE COUNTY MANAGER
5% Floor, New Courthouse e PO Box 1829 e Suite S12, o Fayetteville, North Carolina 28302-1829
(910) 678-7723 / (910) 678-7726 o Fax (910) 678-7717

MEMORANDUM

APRIL 28, 2012

TO: FINANCE COMMITTEE

FROM: AMY H. CANNON, DEPUTY COUNTY MANAGERWA

SUBJECT: UPDATE ON THE PARKS AND RECREATION BOND ISSUE

BACKGROUND

At the March 1, 2012 committee meetings, City staff gave a presentation on the Parks and Recreation
Bond Issue. This proposal includes projects totaling $65.7 million. Of that total, $8.5M is city
projects, $5.9M are county projects and $51.1M is allocated for joint projects. Under this proposal,
the Board of Commissioners would call for a referendum in February 2013 giving residents the
opportunity to vote on the bond projects. If approved the Board of Commissioners would then create a
countywide Parks and Recreation capital tax district, which would include an assessment of 2.25 cents
per $100 property valuation. The operational costs are to be covered by fee generation and by
reductions in the current budget.

Tn Fiscal Year 2008, the Board adopted a financial policy document that addresses debt repayment, debt
structure and other criteria as a part of our pursuing a bond rating upgrade. One of the driving factors to
our success in receiving an upgrade was our conservative debt profile complying with our financial
policies and rating agency criteria. More specifically, ratings agencies look for debt repayment with
level principal payments and structures that ensure that 50% or more of the principal is repaid in the first

10 years.

Since that committee meeting, management has worked with our financial advisor in addressing
questions related to the financial structure of the proposal in comparison to our policy document and
ratings agency criteria. Listed below are a few issues that need consideration:

e The proposed debt repayment structure is aggressive since the payment of principal is significantly
delayed to the middle/end of the 17 year amortization period.

e In this scenario, the 50% criterion mentioned above, is not met until year 12 of the 17 year
amortization period.

e This repayment schedule takes away the county’s flexibility in the future and would require that the
amortization of future bond issues be increased to maintain the 50% criteria.

e This financing structure will negatively impact our debt ratios and ratings criteria.




2

e The county’s debt capacity for this issue must be considered in conjunction with other capital
projects since this issuance may limit our future flexibility.

e [t appears that the county assumes all responsibility and risk for the debt.

e Detailed information on the operational plan and underlying estimates and assumptions for the
revenues and expenditures must be reviewed in detail since ratings agencies will evaluate the
operational plan and the associated risks.

In order to advance this proposed referendum, the issues above need to be addressed to protect the
county’s financial position and bond rating. A draft interlocal agreement has been developed to provide
direction on the capital plan, debt issuance and repayment, and the operational responsibilities. This
document was provided to county staff on April 19™ and has not yet been reviewed by our county legal
staff. This document is also a factor in the consideration to move forward since the county’s operational
responsibility with this bond issue extends to joint facilities, shared based upon proportionate assessed

valuation.

RECOMMENDATION

This item is presented as an update on the proposed bond issue and the county considerations in moving
forward with a referendum in February 2013.

Celebrating Our Past...Embracing Our Future

EASTOVER - FALCON - FAYETTEVILLE - GODWIN - HOPE MILLS - LINDEN - SPRING LAKE - STEDMAN -
WADE




ITEM NO. HPE’-'-—-——

JAMES E. MARTIN JAMES E. LAWSON

County Manager Assistant County Manager
AMY CANNON
Deputy County Manager
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY MANAGER
5% Floor, New Coutthouse @ PO Box 1829 e Suite 512, e Fayetteville, North Carolina 28302-1829
(910) 678-7723 / (910) 678-7726 o Fax (910) 678-7717
MEMORANDUM
TO: FINANCE COMMITTEE
FROM: JAMES LAWSON, ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER
DATE: APRIL 30,2012
SUBJECT: DAY REPORTING CENTER FY2013 FUNDING
BACKGROUND

On June 23, 2011, House Bill 642, the “Justice Reinvestment Act of 2011” was signed into law. This
law brought about many changes to the criminal justice system, including the Criminal Justice
Partnership Program (CJPP). Specifically, effective July 1, 2011, general statutes concerning the
CJPP were abolished and the Treatment for Effective Community Supervision (TECS) Program was
created in place of the CJPP. The Act also directed the department to enter into contractual
agreements through a competitive bid process to provide substance abuse treatment, cognitive
behavioral intervention (CBI) programming and other evidence-based programs as part of the
TECS program. For the current fiscal year, programs already providing services under the CJPP
were allowed to continue providing services through June 30, 2012.

Currently, the Cumberland County Day Reporting Center (DRC) is funded through the CJPP funding
that will now be awarded under the bid process to provide services under the TECS program.
Based on the criteria for funding consideration under the new program, the DRC does not meet the
program eligibility requirements. In order to receive consideration for TECS funding, agencies
must provide approximately 90% CBI services and 10% substance abuse services; and within that
model, a limit of 15% of total costs can be allocated towards administrative-related expenditures.

Our DRC is mainly administrative in nature and provides case management services to refer
offenders to receive CBI, substance abuse and educational services. Since the DRC is not a direct
provider of the requisite services, it does not qualify as TECS program.

Consequently, effective July 1, 2012, the Day Reporting Center will no longer be funded and will
therefore cease to exist as a County department.

It is my understanding that there are several local agencies bidding for TECS funding who are
capable of providing the services required under the new program.

RECOMMENDATION
No action required, for informational purposes.

cc: County Management Team

Celebrating Our Past. . .Embracing Our Future

EASTOVER - FALCON — FAYETTEVILLE - GODWIN - HOPE MILLS - LINDEN - SPRING LAKE - STEDMAN - WADE




ITEM No.__ %

JAMES E. MARTIN JAMES E. LAWSON

County Manager Assistant County Manager
AMY CANNON
Deputy County Manager
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY MANAGER
5% Floor, New Coutthouse 8 PO Box 1829 e Suite 512, o Fayetteville, North Carolina 28302-1829
(910) 678-7723 / (910) 678-7726 o Fax (910) 678-7717

MEMORANDUM

TO: FINANCE COMMITTEE

FROM: JAMES LAWSON, ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER%

DATE: APRIL 30,2012

SUBJECT: UPDATE ON THE CLASSIFICATION AND PAY STUDY

BACKGROUND

As you recall, during the 2011 Commissioner’s Planning Retreat, the Board of Commissioners
updated the County’s goals and objectives through the development of a Strategic Plan. As part of
the Plan, the Board developed a mission statement, vision and core values. In addition, five (5)
goals were established, with each having its own set of objectives.

Goal 5 was established to “employ motivated, professional and well-trained personnel who offer
excellent customer service with PRIDE (Professionalism, Respect, Integrity with accountability,
Diversity and Excellent customer service). Objective 5 of that goal established that the County
would “explore competitive pay based on labor market analysis and update classification system”.

In working towards the accomplishment of that objective, County Human Resources has worked for
months in conjunction with a study team to conduct a classification and compensation plan study.
The study included a review of organizational charts, job descriptions, internal and external market
pay analysis, pay policies and practices, and interviews with County Management, department
heads and supervisors.

The study included all departments with the exception of our Health and Human Service agencies
(Public Health, Mental Health and Social Services). Since these departments are subject to the State
Personnel Act (SPA), there are additional considerations that will require a focus separate from our
general local departments, as well as involvement of the Office of State Personnel, the authority for
approving classification changes for these agencies. It is our intent to conduct a study of these
departments in a second phase to this study.

We plan to provide the Board of Commissioner’s a report and recommendation of Phase 1 of the
study at the next Board Planning Session on May 11, 2012. We will be presenting options for
implementing the study recommendations, including an across-the-board increase for all County
employees, including those assigned to our SPA agencies.

RECOMMENDATION
No action required, for informational purposes.

cc: County Management Team

Celebrating Our Past...Embracing Our Future

EASTOVER - FALCON — FAYETTEVILLE - GODWIN - HOPE MILLS - LINDEN - SPRING LAKE - STEDMAN - WADE




ITEMNO. _ D, __

JAMES E. LAWSON
Assistant County Manager

JAMES E. MARTIN
County Manager

AMY H, CANNON
Deputy County Manager

OFFICE OF THE COUNTY MANAGER
5% Floor, New Courthouse ¢ PO Box 1829 e Suite 512, o Fayetteville, North Carolina 28302-1829
(910) 678-7723 / (910) 678-7726 o Fax (910) 678-7717

MEMORANDUM
APRIL 28, 2012

TO: FINANCE COMMITTEE

FROM: AMY H. CANNON, DEPUTY COUNTY MANAGER-{J\""

SUBJECT: DISCUSSION OF THE COUNTY’S OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT (OPEB)
OBLIGATIONS AS DISCLOSED IN THE JUNE 30, 2011, COMPREHENSIVE
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT (CAFR)

BACKGROUND

After the presentation of the June 30, 2011 audit, Chairman Faircloth thought that it may be useful to
have a discussion at a finance committee meeting on Other Post-Employment Obligations or OPEB.
New guidance on post-employment benefits was established by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) in 2004 through Statement No. 45. The main thrust of GASB Statement Number 45 is to
require for the first time that public sector employers recognize the cost of other post-employment
benefits over the active service life of their employees, rather than on a pay-as-you-go basis. OPEB
includes benefits other than pensions for retired employees, such as; health benefits, disability, dental,
life insurance, etc. Health insurance for retirees is the only post-employment obligation that we have to
record in our financial statements.

The new standard requires an actuarial valuation which projects the future benefit costs. Additionally,
these costs must be recognized in the financial statements under the accrual basis of accounting.
Cumberland County, along with other local governments, previously funded and expensed premiums
paid to provide health benefit coverage for retired employees under the cash basis of accounting.
Funding and expensing premiums under this method is called pay-as-you-go funding. The pay-as-you-
go funding results in the annual premium expense for benefit coverage being expensed and reported as it
is paid each year during a former employee’s retirement term. The new standard requires accrual
accounting to expense in current dollars an actuarial estimate of future benefit cost over the employee’s
entire working career or employment term. Additionally, an entity must recognize an unfunded liability
that has accumulated if the expense is not funded when the benefit is actually earned.

The rationale for GASB Statement 45 is to provide more complete, reliable and decision-useful financial
reporting regarding the costs and financial obligations that governments incur when they provide post-
employment benefits as part of the compensation for services rendered by employees. This recognizes
that the OPEB is earned in the present, but payment of the obligation or benefit is deferred to the
future after the employee has retired. GASB view is that the obligations should be reported on the
accrual basis so that the financial statements will accurately recognize the true cost of the benefit




obligations as they are earned.

There are several key requirements under GASB 45 which must be disclosed or reported in the financial
statements. The first is the Annual Required Contribution (ARC) which represents a level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any
unfunded liabilities over a period of not to exceed thirty years. The County’s ARC for the 2011 Fiscal
Year was $18M. The County only funded $3.5M of the ARC (retiree health insurance expenditures).
The remaining $14.5M of unfunded liability is added to prior years unfunded ARC liabilities for a total
net OPEB obligation of $53.6M. This amount would represent a one-time payment to fully fund the
County’s OPEB obligation to date. The final component reported in the notes to the financial statements
is the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL). The UAAL estimates the net amount of the
unfunded liability for benefits earned by current retired and active employees and former employees
eligible to retire in the future. As of June 30, 2011, the County’s UAAL is $197.8M. This is the total
estimated cost over the next 30 years.

The intent of this new statement is to highlight the long-term liability created from the extension of
health insurance extended to employees upon retirement. Previously, retiree health insurance was
offered to any full time employee with 10 consecutive years of service. In anticipation of the changes
required by this statement, the County changed the vesting period for eligibility from the 10 years to 25
years for employees hired after July 1, 2008. County Finance will continue to monitor the accrued
liability for OPEB and make recommendations as necessary.

RECOMMENDATION

This report is provided as information only.

AHC:cas

Celebrating Our Past. . .Embracing Our Future

EASTOVER - FALCON - FAYETTEVILLE - GODWIN - HOPE MILLS - LINDEN - SPRING LAKE - STEDMAN -
WADE




ITEMNO. _G.

%

I1B301

ugp

OWﬁ_n_q_—a

_m:uo<

SNOLLYOITIO JO AUVINNNS ANNd TVYINID

paIERIa0

39bpng

12301

%09°LL 186°209'86Z | 698°S6.'Cle | 086'250'CZ | 0£€'6E9'8L | PPO'90V'6Z | GLG'L69°ZvL |%08°0L 0v9'sy8°L0E szz'l'eLe LLL'190°0Z SYSvES’'SZ 1g2'88¢'0z | zeeiLev LvL
%61 ¥L ZE6'E66'S8 089'96.'€9 025°880°L 026'880'L 025'880°L 0ZL°1ES'2y | %SE 1L 896'€L 106 869'86Z'19 LEe'SLLL Lee'sLLL 0S0'9.€°L 986°169°CK
%000 EVE'EE 0 0 0 o] 0 %00°0 LEL'6B0Y 0 0 0 0 0

%0070 000'0¥ 0 0 0 0 0 %00°0 0 0 0 0 0 0

%00°SL 896°'L78'8 €/1'1899 161°9€L 16L'9EL 162'9eL 28L'02v'y %00'SL GOE'E9L's TLY'TLB9 809°€9. 809'€9L 809'€9L 8v9'l8S'y
%000 Sve'898 0 0 0 o] 0 %0070 058°0¥9 0 0 0 0 0

%000 0 0 0 0 0 0 %0070 0 612092 0 0 6L2'092 0

%00°SL 9.9'022'9. 10§'691'28 £22'15¢€9 €z.'15¢'9 €22'16€'9 8EE'0LL'BE | %00°SL 9.9°02Z'9L 205'691'LS €2L°16€9 €ZL°16E9 €TLIGE9 8€£'0L1'8E
%SS 0L §69'609'Z1Z | 681'666'67L | 09¥'PI6'SL | 0L8'0SS'HL | v2siZLeeT | 66E'991L°00L |%LS'0L zLo'LeL'LLE L2S'ZIr'6YL ‘spe'el vie6LL8L 281°ZL0'eL | ove'Sel oL
%L6°0L ¥06°085°L 080'6S€'S 2£0'001L°C ¥9€'LZE 0z9'esy 650'78Y'Z %LL°09 S8E'V6L'L ¥8.'689'Y ovt'ese 669°€1S €91°266 281'0£8°C
%66°€8 L0L'vSY 868°L8E GES'L 008 16L°6C 99.°6¥€ %09°L8 192°2sY 190'69¢ 0 0 [4%:3%4 6Y1°G¥e
%9 VL G95'661°0L 290'vLS'L £90'618 EYE'Ee9 8/1'106 6.v'02e's %9V EL 90.'18€'0L 08L%09°L §96'8.9 81£'689 0€6'069 205'S¥6'S
%09°€9 €4£°019 261°88€ ols'se £86'6L €SE'vT 9vE'8LE %99°99 /817009 160'76€ 600°LL ¥6L'CL Lev'ie elv'eee
%6 vL 261'685'6 6.8'981°L 155°€6L 09¢e'cl9 528'9.8 £€1L206'Y %Y6'EL 6l5°162'6 €89°0L2°L 956°199 ¥81°LL9 605'659 YE0'CLT'S
%8C 1L YOE'LSO'Y 6€8°/88°C €16'182 881'182 99i'gee’L 2i2'060') %SV EL LIB'EEL'Y 022'980'e £V8'9¥C £15°80€ 121'882 184'261'2
%9%'99 16¥'91€ SEE'01LT 186'€C vov'Le 986°L6 $96°99 %1199 689°'/2¢ 0€9'91Z €18'SZ 1Zve £75'991
%69 L elg'ves'e ¥0S'2.9'C 266'€92 ¥80°092 osL'oel’} 8v2'€20’)L %80'vL 882'908'¢ 065'618'C £V8'9YT 0v9'zee €16'€92 ¥61'920'2
%89'69 ZL1'00v'e9 A d-TAN 44 886'G26'Y 028'€09'y YE€1'956'S ¥08'€69'82  [%22°0L 925'eSE'Y9 290'vyS'Sy 6ZL'%10'S 810'6¥1L'S 810°GL6'Y 20E'S9Y'0E
%¥0°L9 L0§'G1E' L2 ¥96'0L€81 Lig'sel’e 966'180'C 6Lyl 095'166°LL  %¥T L ¥2.'595°9¢ 6L0°526'81 SEL'0LL'E ¥.0'262°C S8L°2€C'T S29'0EC°CL
%69°LL §09'¥80°9€ z81'898's2 1420642 ¥2§'12s'e Lg6°e18'e vve'erL'al  |%vioL 208'/8.'/€ 8v0'619'92 ¥65'v¥8'C vv6'958'C €£8'289°C 129'¥E€2'81L
%0¥'89 6.2'88€'8L 1829182 606811 06€'LL0°) TLLLL9'L 0lLL'z0L'8 %6089 G0L'9EL'8) 901'85.°2) £09'260'L zi8'66l'L 020°'L20') 119'68€'6
%62 L9 8L9'LL9'L SEQ'YZL'L 198°€6 LLL'Y8 €6°SEL LIE0L8 %EYEL €08'€8.4°L oLE'ELE"} sye'sel 9zZ'hLL £10'85L £88'806
%00'vL Lriies'se 809°505°82 6€6°L1LT \eL'eeL's 828'680'% 0Z1'086'8L  [%09°€L 6E£'806'8E YEE'SE9'8T 01£'S8S°C 861'06.°C £28'290'€ £00°261°02
%SGL'SL 128085 L1 OvL'6¥L'8 988'88. 980°€08 Ly6'v0€’L 128'2G8'S %Pl €L 688°'126'LL yi'6LL's 6EL°LGL z6e'9e8 8.2'0.6 8€°19L'9
%SGTEL 062°046'9C 898'G5.'61 £50'€26°L GE9'026'L 188'48.°C 662°22ZL'SL  |%08'EL 05+'986°9¢ 281'916'6L LLL'ves’L 9¥8'eS6’L SY§'L60'C $z9'0€0'vL
%E0'8G 0Z1'Z68'9 89€'666'E 625°LLY ¥6€'29¥ 8G€'91G 180'609°'C %0G°SS 12e'vLy'9 8ZL'€6S'E z9z'eve GSC'60E §96'G5E LY9'v8S'C
%¥S69 €11'860'LY ¥05'185'82 £¥1'eL8°L £¥5'952 182'6v8'S LE0°209°'02  |%VY9 1L §16'28¢'2E 058'284'92 zel'gle’) 186°0€E°9 181'62¢ 086°€06'81
%lSVL A 00L'88€"}L1 £yL'es8’L ¥8E'61 18189 98¢'L2Y'6 %G0°99 SOE'VeELL yv9'6LY’ L zel'slel 120°00S l5l'6CE YELLEY'S
%4599 65€°228'SC YOv'e6L L1 ] 8G1°L€2 009'182°S SYO'vLL'LL | %80 7L 019'850'9¢ 90T'c0e'61 - 096'0£8'S 0 9ve'eLy'EL
%96'9L 6.2°0L0°9 GLS'LL9'Y 166°LYE T5e'9se 1L0°29¢€ §60°909°c %SLLL 0SZ'€96'S /89°9€9'Y Slezee [a 4> 669972 622'SLL'E
%L6°0L €8LLLE YL 8ve'2SL'04 z8¥'81Z'L 8LL'6vL €L8°1LL°L SLL'2L0'2 %L8'L9 8.5°96€°GL LyL'6yr'0L ¥£6°'688 0€9'v80°L 192218 918°109°L

paieBijgo. 1bpag SEgzine

CLOCAd

_m oy

pund [eisuss) [2}0 1

uoeonp3 [ejol
Aepno feyded 9014
934 0014
asuadx3g aunD DDLd
uopezilenbg xe | sajes
3AQUBOU| JEBAPO0S)
dx3 uaung jooyog AjuncH
uogeonpg

el0)Gng
juswdo|aaa( oIWoUco]
uonea109y g SUMIND

Aeqr [ejoL
Jayi0 Aselqry
Aeiqry
Aresqry

SBOIMISS UBWINK [B}O )
swetbold SH J8Yi10
juswaog Hoddng piyD
S82IAISG UBLUNK

S80JAISS |Bj00S [BJ0L
sweibord $Sa 2Y0
$89IAI9S {21008

S9OIARS {2100S

yiesH
Aejes onand
JUSWISIIOMT MET [BI0]
rer
Lusug
juswsoloug meT
S30IAIRS 9Al09]J0.d °§ Aouabiawg
JUSWILIBAOD) [218USY) [B10]
13YJ0 JUSWILLIBAOD) [BIBURS
90188 1920

JUBWILIBAOL) [BI8UST)

spunoig) % sbuipjing

uoneSILIWPY [BIBUSS)

GNNJ TYEINID



120'505'0.2

Le€'9e

892'95EWS1L

9,66'6.

siv'osy'siz

509°'89'sS

| soe'zs

18G°€09'86Z | 912'6£0'SZZ | LE668V'SL | COV 080 VL | LG0 0860V | Z6€ 687 ¥SL OV9'SYELOE | LLE29L [ | ¢S50S96 | ¢6L 6vL L | S0Z 06V € | LOV L6C SOk
09s‘00)'8z | 868's56's | sov'vie'z  |(8512) yos'e0s’s | y29'zEl l91's98'9z | veL'yov'L | 181'6.2'Z  |{66W) 26512 8£8°E0L'S
%000 90LgskvE [0 0 0 0 0 %000 veg'es6’ ol [0 0 0 0 0
%000 189'86C 0 0 0 0 0 %000 000'005 0 0 0 0 0
%000 ovL'EsT L 0 0 0 0 0 %000 0 0 0 0 0 0
%000 000759 0 0 0 0 0 %000 9.8'109 0 0 0 0 0
%000 vo0'L 0 0 0 0 0 %000 0SE'Er9 0 0 0 0 0
%000 08v'6GY'L 0 0 0 0 0 %000 §28'LET’L 0 0 0 0 0
%000 000°008"+ 0 0 0 0 0 %000 0 0 0 0 0 0
%000 0 0 0 0 0 0 %000 000'005°¢ 0 0 0 0 0
%l9'LL 1861118 6vl'.98's | 0ge'siec | zee's Leg'e0s'e | 020708 %9¥'08 °ETH00'6 | ESLYPTL 0902/ |0 86512 $60°156'7
%000 0 829°L 62.'120) 0 L1209 08e"/9 %000 0 mmm,mm 0 0 0 6£6'66
%000 0 0vL'8S 0FL'8S 0 0 0 %000 0 0 0 0 0
Ea 3 : 0 - mm« 65 1z)'L

%E8'6L VI 102

%LL'9L | 097'0v0'8

929'G9}

| 6sLvel'

G88'9G1'}

9v1L'65L

198'67

o1z %9los

Y8LYEL's  |%lS 0L

07889

966°159°9

zZL08L']

001789

%6608 818'G80°'61Z | 99¥'SLLEL hm_‘ €80Vl | Z8v0LYiE £52'868°022 | S9E'LLS £29°/21'09}

%86°901 680°189'% 98L°200°S £15°609 §00°62L 29T LY 968'161°C %6506 981°'ev9y 01£'902'y 806'601 8V0°€ZL 25L°shL 209°228°

%8¥'861 960°16€ 0vZ'9lL £50'6.Y §19'Le 98C6E 9€€'922 %99 1L yZVTIE BEE 20062 ¥6€'LS ZEY'LS 122012

%L1'88 S¥€'969 €16°€L9 995'68 L08'e8 /88°16 6LL'9vE %lLL9 S66'vLL ¥2&'vey 20529 0€L'65 JARS 7 G/1'88Z

%¥6'L0L v1'98€'€ 168°LGY'E 0 0 elz'ole GZ9'LrL'E %LLv6 168°16v'e ovi'erz'e 0 0 0 ovi'sre'e
¥56'vY 685'€l 26L'v21 vov,,w_‘ ¥Z6'S £02'02

992'08

vZL'E8L'Y

%8L°¢CL orm.o\y

651'98

voz'zLL

va.vmv i %8Gyl

EETT6TL  %B0°6L

000'Z6

951'v€)

50£°0LZ

930°1L02

£V6'E8y _‘.v.v.Nm.v,m 0
%S9°LE 1/6°3LEL G6.'G6Y €65°Z81 89965 vi5°€ge %2Z Ve /82°¢6E'L 626'9.7 68bcel €1e'9¢t LzVviie
%69'96 9'8L0°L GSL'ZY0'L 8.8'z1 Ly6'65L 1£2'961 269'€.9 %EL'G6 6£9°061°1 vi9eel’t £80'05 661'212 88€'598
%¥0'e6 668'€ZY'C 660'552' €/0°L¥8 605's81 8L9'/1 6680121 %b¥'TL 911’69’ zie'zoo'e Lis'oly JAZAPR3 ¥66°/8€°L
%S56'98 0€€'06Z LSt'ese 2eg'ce Le'oe 691'5Z 60L'¥91 %SS'6L 05L'0L2 208'vLT 8LL'%E €le'se o] R=3s}=]
%¥9'69 22€'098'C 006'166'L 811'652 898'681 96/'vLL 85y L9¢'L %EB'LL 6vL0vL'e €29'069° €€T'99Y 9zL'I9t 692°€90°C
¥25'0L 820'LL S51°01 €L0'61 100'9L Ly1'66

160°GEZ'L

.xuwm vw. £68'/87'L

08€'y92")

£6.°051

122'168  %E0p.

i i
8E1°106'0Z  |%¥v'9S

12816215 | 0

[ v10'€55

%05'26 | 6" LI0Z £YS'9Le’L 98.'0£2 0zg'Lze 600°280°T Z9P'9r9’L

%96'v9 985'1¢2L G96'8. 00¢ 129'07 ¥60'8€ %LPe 9cy'cel LU 692 6v¥ 0V ¥S0'L

%Ee6'€CH 00§'29Y 861'€LS £66'6.L ¥6e’ LY £68'8y 81620V %EE80L 000'6¥¥ 60p'98Y LS9 085'¥S 88Z'69€
o_‘o.om._‘ 9G/'LEL £8G°015'L va w_‘_‘ v mmv Lyl /€0°901 ]

| 6v2'vo8

%9 vy i r,,rh.m_,_‘._‘

60726

I
5ez'.£9'6

296°1GE

128000

"1 66215

| sz

960'YL_

0zZ'zse'z

a\i. L'€9 99'8LL'YS 861795'VE VIV'IEL'S 20'yv9'y G95°188‘¢ 961°05%'SS wcw c.vm ¢ 9eb'ezz’le
%TL'EL GZE'866 | GBLELY L 965'88¢ 182082 L09°€ GET0E6 %0222 ¥16'980°¢ 15/'6E8 86168 LPPEL 871029
%62¥2 809'269'C 862 VEL'L Sv9'seT Sv9'82Z LrL'see L9T'v¥6 %00°19 68.'v€6'C ShL'06L'L ceeale €09'8LY 02€'560°L
%66'0L 220'99. €08'YS 10¥'6L §69'89 6.9'GY 890'¥S€ %6E'€9 SES'ISL YLy 988'Z¢ S05°ZhL 0€0°'10€
%YT e 878'80V'Th S61'818'92 119'96L'v GE6'LSY'E 125'960'c 890'€0'9)  ||%86°LS €5¢'6ES'TY 2TT'TI9'VT 866'0LE'C 98¥'G9E’Y LE1'926'9L
%0119 0LL'IEL'S 045°106'¢ giv'eee €29°'165 Ziv'o6e zel'ozz’e %GL'8% 281°80b°6 0Ze'2LL'E 251825 189'865 181'080°C
LEL'E6Y SyL'LL $09'6 8/E'6.E %12°8Y €90°0€L ¥19'0€Z

VPR'ELL'L

%965 0¥1'299

£0.'9L2

96L°LLL %60'9G

S51L'629'6

L | PI6'SE0T

LszerLE

| 9v6'21z

%560V 667'L0°01 £9¥'sel'y LIE'S6) 608 VLY 1SY'126°) 921°895°) %EL'6E 898'2Z52
%LL'v8 126°LY8°) 988°181°L Li€°851 989° Ly 251z 119'99L %<’ L9 822 88l 159'99Z°} 668'LG 898°CSC 151'61E YEV'TH9
%08'¥2 ¥68°L yor 0 yor 0 0 %8g've 896°L 8y 0 0 24 0
%09'%C ¥61°02¢ 192'8L 0 0 192'8L 0 %ilv'6L 9Z6'09¢ z.0'0L 0 0 2L0'0L 0
%LEYVT 6LL 62 0 0 62 4] %85 el 0g 0 0 oe 0
%1S've 96.'6¥%1 LhL'9E 0 0 LiL'ee 0 %8S'vZ 0/9'651 09z'se 0 0 09z'8e 0
%¥S've 2.8 1454 0 0 1434 0 %98've L06 €2¢ 0 0 €¢¢ 0
%S0vT 298°106'¢ 16586 0 o] 165'8E6 0 %€E8'8C 9E1'Z6E'E 8V6°LL6 0 0 8v6'LL6 0
%1S¥T 188°C18°L 062 vk 0 ] 062 vy 0 %85 VT 9/6°€88°L 620'€9Y 0 0 620'c9v 0
%S0'9L 805'L8E'L 819'050°L 0 65e'9eh 0 65Z'29 %88y 9Ls'8ye'L 965'955 0 0 111'v92 6z8'162
668'C6E 0 0 +8/'80L BTG 'L6€ Q 0 285'6/1

'89.°C1LE'6

%S6 LY 962'285'VE

%5696 SZ0'TLLYSL

wmvv,mmo,m

92€'8L0'8

8£5'508'AS1

mmo.hmn.,m

%YL 8y LWE'SPL9E 9£9'606'L1 86Y'€6Y'C 66E°LLL'E Z9v's0E'e 112'666'8 %9825 89¢°678'9¢ Z22'686'C

%EY' VL 000°0ST'} 08€'0€6 SSY'0LL 102°9L T5h'v6 27X %S0'vL evi'osl’) 81.78/8 617911 1zi'es 9.9'Gel 20Z'€SS

%2ZL'e9 508929 599'G6E 986'cet 0 0 619'LZ %S L6 8GE'EYS v6E'L6V 201’051 0 0 2BZ'I¥E

%000 ove'sse 0 0 o] o] 0 %000 0bZ'e82 0 0 0 0 0
16S'€85'9L £50'652'C 0L0'LIZE %L6°LS 876'EE Ve £86'20L'81 omr mmo € 9y5'€98'7 v.Z'ELY'8

paziuboodsy jabpng
%

Iejo1

Sag-ing: psziuBosey jabpng

LL0ZAS

_u:-o<

%

oL

EYL'ger'eyl | 628°168'E 698'Z6.L'Y sap'ell’le | VI6'6L0'PLL (%2 L6 G10°90E'€GL | ¥¥9'SLL'E 6£9°006'7 L€9°6E5'9Z | 191°069'811
%€L'88 6v2'G61'S 585°609'% 05e'e5e ¥9T€1LS 860°LL5 €18'€91'E %0v'.8 S6SVITS 8SETLSS Y 2C9'L6E 6C0¥S 80LVIY 68.°012°€
%HSGEIL 200'862°0L S50'vPT'e $9S'ev0°L 669'066 0Le'L00'L 281'802'S %L¥'8L 116'Z86'04 ¥9.°119'8 ¥81°866 1516211 666'901°1 Yy LIE'S
_xumw wm 1.8L1°8EL mom ¥85'0¢cL | 196°266°L wom 882'C E.o G66" SC 686'20L'S0L [%/Z'66 Num 911yl mmm 9EL'OvlL | 8€8° mwn | mwN 1E€2'E vmm :o 14 wwm wo_. o_._‘

SEEING

ZL0TAL

AAVIAIRNS INNIATE ALNNOD ANV TRRIIFGINND

_m:uu<

L

e10).

puny [e1ouds) [ejoL

[ejol
pajeudoiddy asuejeg pun

19Mag B Jojep - SouUBleg pung
[BUISNpLU| - 9oUEjeg pun

yjieaH - eouejeg pund
SuUOIjeAOUSY/a0UBUSIUIBI @oURlRqg PUNH
SUOEDIUNWIWGCY ~ 8aUR(eg pun{
yjjesH Jswlo - aoue(eg pund
anuanay aseydIngd/ JUswelsu)
slajsuel)

Spa300Ld USeD/S1assy paxld I 3[eS
SsoT/UIRD

sBuipjing w _u:m._ jo SjES

' sasinogbuioyl i
02-01 Alobaren _EoE:w

jejol
2y0
ey
OWALD
BUWooU( JsaIelU|

e30L

LYo

$99. SOJIAIDS [EID0S
S99 Jusysg

so9 Aeiq

sea4 juswpeda( yjeeH
[04U07) [EUliY

jejoL

LYo

suonoadsy|

spaaq Jo 19ysibay
as g ]

18301
19410
juswaolojug poddng pliyo
Aeigry
$30IAIBG [BID0S
yesH

Byo

uofezijenby xe| ss[eg umposy
uonezijenb3 xe| sejeg aye buudg
uofjezilenb3 Xe| sojeg UBWPSIS
uonezifenb3 xe| s8jeg JOACISE]
uonezienb3 xe| safeg apep
uonezienby xe} ssjeg Aeq
[eutBug-uonezienby xe| ss[es Ae
Jyoid 8Joig odv

%S € 81013 Ogv

sexe] Jayl0

SUCHEOUNLLLIODSB] @ 08PIA XB] Sa|eS
SUIM B 1889

?v +Nv + Oy UV + P1) XE] SO[ES

194Q) 9 S1E3A Joud
JUBLIND - SIS J0IOW
JusLng - oljgnd ‘[euosIag |2y

aNNd IVAINID




1 l'o lsor'or — |iezer  |eir'ele ((sosizz]l [iwizl ] |0 [Zsi'ee.  [ooLwee |69c06 | ebGZ6k | 9ZrcoL |
YeV'lvL’c [08ECy9e [6J50GC | 69v'98c [ B86e/8C | yE6BioL Isy’ees’s TplG'8L2C G680 | €cg60c  ees60t | ELOGYBL
%26°96 Lyy's6L'e 90¥'60L'2 G69'2G 2e9'eyl SZ1°e6 ¥96'SLy'2 %6665 899°68 ¥6€°'LS 665V 665y 665y 165°L¢
%00°SZ1 €61'GS 266'89 S6E LY 66S'Y 665"y 96€'81 %00°GL €61°6S ¥6€'LY 665V 66S'Y 665V 16S'L2
%9€'96 ySZ'OvL'T SLY'0rae ooe'gl £20'8E} 926588 996'/6€C %182¢ SiV'0€ 000°0L 0 0 0 000°0}

%868°18 125'9¢S°9 98.'26¢'S v12'80¢ 160°'6Z1 $Zs08¢ 868'VETY  1%6ETL STL'606°C 606°628'C VEV'YLE zev'vLe (43245 019'988°L
%SG0°/8 LLL'een’e S 0Y9C 00€91 €20'8EL 92588 99G°/6€C  |[%00°0 G86'GEL 0 0 0 0 0

%00'SL y5¥'028'C e'siL'e 8£0'56C 8€0'GET 8£0'GEZ 122°019'L %0062 ovL'ell'e 668'628'C er'rLe gzr'vie 8er'rie 0/5'988°L
%00°GL 000°€89 KA ARe L16'9S 216'9S L16'9S 008 L€ %000 0 0 0 0 0 0

%00°0 0 ¥99'c8 0 [} 0 €19'¢8 %00°0 0 0 0 0 0 0

%000 0 SLL'L 6l (8e6) 34 166} %00°0 0 2] 9 ¥ 4 or

(rei'ivie) [{cze’0657e) [(882 802 068°C.. ¥06°808 £67'908°L) zsp'ezse) [(zce'ce6’s) [ 692w8 () {LzeZiL) (2£8%EpLL)
%06°89 1A% 11%:) lzLviey 6.5'0€S 880°€rE 9.5'0¢9 828'60L°7  |%E£9'6S 151'092'9 $08°'zeL's £2E20V £10'29% 8cE'ery TN 14 44
%L0°1L S12'08% 80E'IYE 0 S96'01 580'cel 8GZ'80¢ %ET 8L lge°ee 182y 0 0 0 LETY
%91°eL 688'99/ $90'195 180°HL ssp'ee v26'62 815'9zy %5869 L10'82L 18Y'80§ Zie'ey [4aA4 ¥.0'0% 090°z.€
%9708 zi9'ees 61209 9€6'vLL PLO'vL 60v'ELL 09€'89¢ %6819 000048 ¥25'v98 11889 PLLLL 625'66 $00'52¢
%62°L9 16991y 99¢€'082 £7.L'6 S9LTh z8¥'92 9.6°182 %9.'8Z 806'€98 18¥'8ve )0zt £€9'02 90€'L} 8vE'661
%189 000°056 220'€S9 (24 4: 1 860'SH 088'601 lz9'eze %E€G'8L 000°2v6 092'6€L 196'€0}t [¥1 8140 919’66 oje'see
%'l 000°00€ L0€'y ] 0 0 L0€'Y %ELLL 000°00% 80589 6v¢ 0 859 005°29
%.LT'3L €Le'ees 125'60¥ 968'v¢ ¥89'v¢ 8€8'6Y 601°06C %¢CL'S9 ¥85'686 06¥°28¢ €€6'LE 602G LLL'SS 1€9'¥ST
%0102 eticy $5.'¢62'L Sri'iel 119'zet 806'8LL ¥2.'068 %0L°69 LLL'ErS'L LIE'IE) 06¥'LE)L LvZ'IEL eV pEL 9€1°208

PozilBooay j9Bpng

%

iejo1 Jei

LLOZAL

. 29qrnp

pezjubosey “_m.,_m_..:.,_.m ..
%

ejol

ien

ClL0CAd

AIVININNS TVIONVNIZ ¥3LNIO NMOYD

CERL
1ENIoY

i L T

%60°89 000°SLE°2 9vLL19°L 16z'zze 860042 zi9'12) $80°€06 %8E°LL 000°2E¥°2 Lyb'6EL') 885°08y LeE WAL LL0°LEE 68229
%.Lv'98 000°012 16518} €62'¢S 998°L€ 0 8EV'L6 %EC8Y 0000+ [A S25's 6291 sei'LlL £96'9.
%GS5'G9 000°00S Sy.'ize 0ee'a9s 6€9°11) 0 9..'651 %eCl'G9 000528 968'LvE 209651 0 886'v8 L0€°1L0}
%6591 000'62 8rL'y 8 0S SOL°L 6062 %9L°221 000°0L 9z'zl V€9 08z'e Gel'} 188°L
%12'66 000°0€ 29.'62 18201 8¥6'e 0 125'st %58'58 000°st 2€9'8€ yee'se 0 viv'L $E6°L
%6989 000°0L 698'9 8vL 8LL'e 0 €0v'z %97’ e 000°0} avi'e 6214 (v62) Sls 96.°}
%1C°L9 000°0€€ 008122 98¥'6€ S61°82 Lys'se 8.5'8z) %EBVL 000°0ee z56'0ve 682°0L cls'ge 60v'29 Wwe'sL
%5569 000Gy yve'Lie Lob'8S 06081 SZl'ee 8€9'102 %8168 000's.¥ 9z9'szy 229's8 z86'221 £92'09 SSZ'PSL
%88'ZL 000'GZ1 9vs'szl 201'S1 066'Z) LIS'LE 2€6'/8 %8T'L9 ooo'zie €E9'ZV1 162°92 8E6°0} 62101 eraAely
%S e9 000°029 GEE'90¥ 515'68 209°es PEE°0S v88'cie %6169 000029 £66'82Y 120°CH) 09¥'LL 528's8 Z89'651

990-{np

dxg [ejol JoAO SnueAsy (B30 ]

dxg JodQ-UopN Jeno Aay JodQ-uop

sasuadxg Buneisdouoy B30,
pun4 [e4auss —inQ Joysuel
1ejeay | feualy

|eg pung pue Buneladp-ucy jej0 L
souejeg pund pajeudoiddy
sbelonsg @ poo4 paredsaid
pung [eJouss)
U] s1ajsuel )
SI0)oBAUOY) Xe ]| S3jeS
SIUSLUISIAU] UO paued Jsaio)uj

dx3g GunesadQ Joac Ay Bupesadg

sasuadxg Buneladg 230
AegnQ |eyded

Jjeday g ouUBLSUIBIA
SOD|AISS PBJOB[UDD
S)USAZ patosuadg

Bunesado

spjeusg

ssuejes

senuoAsy BunetedQ |ejo g
anuaay Bupayiep 18)usy umos)
SUOISSBOUOY) JSIUSY UMOID
$894 92O XOg 183U UMOID
S9)RgaY J9NDIL I8IUSD) UMOID
SNOBUE||SISI 18jUSD) UMOLD
abieyoing Ao 18)UsD UMOID)
oasuadxy] paIoA0daY 18IS UMOID
Jusy Juswdinb3 i8yusy uMmoID




